
WAYNESVILLE CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING AGENDA 

AMENDED  
JULY 21, 2022 

5:30P.M. 
 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
 
Invocation  
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
(All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is 
desired, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 
 

a. Approval of the Agenda 
b. Approval of the Minutes  

i. June 16th, 2022 
c. Approval of Bills 

 
2.    CITIZENS COMMENTS  
 
3.    SPECIAL GUESTS – PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. City Electric Department – Certificate of Excellence – MPUA 
b. Roger Layman – AUSA – Award Presentation for Mayor Brown 

     
4.     BOARD – COMMISSION – LIAISON REPORTS 

 
a. Park Board – Chairman Militti 

i. Report on July 14th Meeting 
 

b. Planning and Zoning – Councilman Davis 
i. No Meeting Held 
ii. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB2022-23 – Approving Conditional Use at 1605 Historic 

Route 66 West.   
 

 
5. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Utility – Councilman Conley 
i. Report on July 5th, Meeting 
ii. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB 2022-19 – Approving Agreement with Benton & 

Associates for Engineering Services. 
iii. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB 2022-22 - Amending Utility Deposits – Solid Waste 

Collection 
 

b. Economic Development Committee – Councilman Rice 
i. Report on July 5th, Meeting 
 



 
 

c. Police Committee – Councilman Liberty 
i. Report on July 14th, Meeting 

 
d. Roads and Grounds – Councilman Farnham 

i. Report on July 7th, Meeting 
 

e. Finance and Human Resources Committee – Councilman Davis 
i. Report on July 14th, Meeting 
ii. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB2022-24 – Amending the FY 2022 Budget 
iii. PROPOSED RESOLUTION – 11-22 – Authorizing Funding for ARPA Grant 

Programs – DCIP, Drinking Water/Wastewater Infrastructure and Lead-Service 
Line Inventories 

 
 

f. Waynesville/St. Robert Joint Airport Board – Councilman Liberty  
i. Report June 28th, Meeting 
ii. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB 2022-21 – Amending the NEPA Evaluation to include 

and Environmental Baseline Study. 
 
6.  OTHER BUSINESS  
 

a. PROPOSED RESOLUTION – 12-22 - Appointment of Director/Alternate Director of 
the Missouri Gas Commission 

 
7.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
 
8.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
9.   MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT 



WAYNESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 16TH, 2022 

5:30PM 
 

Call to Order: Mayor Brown called the June 2022 meeting of the Waynesville City Council to order at 
5:30pm. 
 
Roll Call:  On roll call, Mayor Brown and seven (7) council members were present: 
 

PRESENT:  Farnham, Davis, Wilson, Rice, Liberty, Conley, Koren 
 ABSENT:  None 
 
Public Hearing - Mayor Brown opened a Public Hearing to address the proposed Sewer rate increase at 
5:30pm.   
 
 Citizen Comments – None 
 Council Comments -  
   

Councilman Farnham asked if we were currently losing money on sewer services.  Mr. 
Doyle stated that the current rate structure was not enough to cover routine 
maintenance and other costs, so at this time, yes the City is losing money. 

 
 With no further comments, Mayor Brown closed the public hearing at 5:40pm. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda:  Mayor Brown called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. A 
motion was made by Councilman Liberty and seconded by Councilman Davis to approve the Consent 
Agenda. 
 

YEAS: Farnham, Davis, Wilson, Rice, Liberty, Conley, Koren 
NAYS: None 

   Motion passed 
 
Citizens Comments  
 

a. Keith Pritchard – Mr. Pritchard stated that he still opposes the construction of a cell 
tower on Viren Lane since it would be in a residential area.  

 
Special Guests – Presentations – None. 
 
Board – Commission – Liaison Reports   
 

Park Board   
 
a. No meeting Held – No Report   

 
Planning and Zoning  

 
a. Report on June 14th meeting.  Councilman Davis stated the Commission conducted a 

Public Hearing over a request for a resident to keep chickens in the City limits.  
Councilman Davis stated the Planning & Zoning Commission voted to deny the request 
and have forwarded their recommendation to the City Council.   

 
 



 
 
b. PROPOSED ORDINANCE  - HB2022-17 – Conditional Use – 107 Viren Lane – 

Telecommunications Tower.  The proposed Ordinance was read by title twice and its 
adoption and passage was moved by Councilman Conley and seconded by Councilman 
Wilson. 

 
YEAS: Wilson, Rice, Liberty, Conley, Koren 
NAYS: Farnham, Davis 

   Motion passed 
 

VETO – HB2022-17 vetoed by Mayor Brown according to Section 110.090 of 
Waynesville’s City Doe. 

 
 
Standing Committee Reports 
 

Utility Committee 
 

a.   Report on June 7th, meeting.  Councilman Conley stated the Committee received 
updates on all utility departments.  Councilman Conley stated the Committee went into 
closed session for legal reasons.  The Committee then voted to forward a solid waste 
collection contract between the City of Waynesville and Saint Robert to City Council for 
final approval.  

 
b. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB2022-12 – Approving an Amendment to the Sewer Service 

Rates of the City.  The proposed Ordinance was read twice by title and its adoption and 
passage was moved by Councilman Liberty and seconded by Councilman Koren. 

 
YEAS: Farnham, Davis, Wilson, Rice, Liberty, Conley, Koren 
NAYS: None 

   Motion passed 
 

c. PROPOSED ORDINANCE – HB2022-18 – Approving an Amendment to the Solid Waste 

Management IGA with Saint Robert.  The proposed Ordinance was read twice by title 

and its adoption and passage was moved by Councilman Rice and seconded by 

Councilman Conley. 

 
YEAS: Farnham, Davis, Wilson, Rice, Liberty, Conley, Koren 
NAYS: None 

   Motion passed 
 

 
 

Economic Development & Government Affairs   
 

a. Report on the June 7th, meeting. Councilman Rice stated the Committee discussed the 
Transportation Alternative Program Grant.  Councilman Rice stated the Committee also 
received an update on City events.    

 
 
 



 
 

 
Police & Emergency Services Committee 

 
a. No meeting held – No Report.  
 
Roads and Grounds  

 
a. Report on June 2nd, meeting.  Councilman Farnham stated the Committee heard from 

concerned citizens regarding missing street signs and line of sight problems from 
business flying flags for advertising.  Farnham stated there were challenges in paving 
both roads due to clearance.  Placement of Route 66 painted signs were discussed on 
the square along with department updates and pothole and maintenance updates from 
Supervisor Jason Chapman.   

  
b. PROPOSED RESOLUTION – 10-22 – Authorizing Application to for the Transportation 

Alternatives Program Grant.  The proposed Resolution was read once by title and its 

adoption and passage was moved by Councilman Wilson and seconded by Councilman 

Conley. 

 
YEAS: Farnham, Davis, Wilson, Rice, Liberty, Conley, Koren 
NAYS: None 
Motion passed 

 
 

Finance & Human Resources Committee   
 

a. Report on June 9th, meeting.  Councilman Davis stated the Committee reviewed the 
City’s finances and current budget and discussed the mid-year budget adjustments 
coming up.  Councilman Davis stated the Committee discussed fundraising efforts for a 
City employee, Employee Appreciation Day and the censure of the Mayor. 

 
Waynesville/St. Robert Joint Airport Board  

 
a. Report on May 28th, meeting.  Councilman Liberty stated the Board received an update 

regarding the budget, operations and fuel sales.   
 
Other Business 
 

a. Appointment – Councilman Liberty made a motion and Councilman Farnham seconded 
to re-appoint Kris York to the Board of Adjustments.  His term will expire May 2027. 

 
City Administrator’s Report 
 
City Administrator John Doyle discussed the grant funding opportunities the City is in the process of 
applying for.   
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS – Rena Brown of 315 Skyline Drive approached the Council and asked what the 
status was on the censure of the Mayor and why a previously mentioned Special Session was not held.  
Councilman Davis stated that the Special Session was not held since the Mayor did not formally request 
one.  Councilman Davis stated that the censure of the Mayor was governed by State Statute that the 
Council must adhere to.  
 
 
Council Comments 
 

Koren -  Congratulated staff on a great 50th Anniversary of the Park.  
Congratulated the Army on their birthday. 

 
Conley -  No comment 
 
Liberty -  Thanked everyone for calling. 
 
Rice -  Gave his condolences to his neighbor’s family who passed recently. 
 
Wilson -  Thanked the Park’s Department for their efforts to make the park look 

great for the Remember the Removal Riders.  Please slow down in 
residential areas and be conscious of the heat. 

 
Davis -  Had a great time at the 50th Anniversary. 
 
Farnham -  Encouraged citizens to explore the Build it Better Program to secure 

grant funding for home improvements.    
 
 
Mayor Comments – Thanked the Council and citizens and Channel 12 for broadcasting tonight’s 
meeting.      
 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before this session of the Waynesville City Council, the meeting 
was adjourned at 6:43pm by Mayor Brown.  The next regularly scheduled session of the Waynesville City 
Council is July 21, 2022 at 5:30pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Michele Brown 
City Clerk 















July Park Board Summary 

Call to Order: 6:00 

 The WSR is doing very well with the Baseball/Softball  season with a total of 350 registrations 

and a total of 32 teams. On Jan 1st St Robert takes over the WSR for five years and will take over 

the Striping of the fields which our guys have been busy doing for this year. Fall Soccer 

registrations has begun on July 1st and runs until August 5th. Coaches meeting will be August 10 

and practices will start August 15th. The City has finished planting the new trees. 

It was brought up that we should have a fence in the ball park that would be 175 ft from first 

base. This would keep people off the field and be more safe. 

The Master Gardeners have a new Director Rachelle Watsom. 

It was brought to our attention that some residents would like it if we named the pavilions after 

prominent Waynesville residents. Ones that made a difference in our community. 

Our next scheduled meeting is August 11th at 6:00. 

Adjourned at 6:45 

 



Bill No.  2022-23 City of Waynesville Ordinance No.  

 
Bill No. 2022-23                  Ordinance No.  
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING APPROVAL FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  
TO KEEP POULTRY AT 1605 HISTORIC ROUTE 66 WEST, WAYNESVILLE, MISSOURI;  

FIXING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
WHEREAS, a petition requesting a conditional use of property located within the City of Waynesville, 
Missouri has been filed with the City Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, the petition has been referred to and considered by Public Hearing of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission of the City of Waynesville; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of the Public Hearing (including a description of the property involved and of the 
conditional use being requested) has been given by legal notice published in the Dixon Pilot, a newspaper 
having general circulation in Pulaski County and the City of Waynesville, Missouri, which legal notice was 
published at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date of the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after complete and total review of the Planning & Zoning Commissions 
recommendation, determines that it is the best interest of the City for the requested conditional use not 
to be approved.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, MISSOURI AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1.  Edward and Carolyn Tee have requested a conditional use for the keeping of poultry on their 
R1 property.  The application regarding this request is attached as “Exhibit A”. 
  
Section 2.  The City Council of the City of Waynesville hereby denies the request of the Conditional Use 
Permit for this location for the use specified in the application. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 21st DAY OF JULY, 2022. 
  
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Michele Brown, City Clerk 

























                UTILITY COMMITTEE MEETING 
SUMMARY REPORT 
July 5, 2022 3:30 PM 

 
Attendance: 
Board:  Councilman Ed Conley, Councilman Sean Wilson, Councilman Rob Rice 
Staff:   john Doyle, Michele Brown, Tracey York, Daniel Shelden, Joe York, Donnie Beal, Miriam Jones 
Visitors:   Randy Brown, Steve Anderson, Darrell Maurina 
 
 

• Call to Order – Councilman Conley called the meeting to order at 3:30 pm. 
 

• Approval of Minutes – June 7th, 2022 – Councilman Rice made the motion to approve the meeting minutes and Councilman 
Wilson seconded.  Motion passed. 

 

• JERA – “JERA” Jack Eldredge Recognition Award was presented to Mr. Eldredge along with family members and co-workers 
by Councilman Sean Wilson.  Mr. Eldredge received the Presidential Award and Pin to show the impact that he has made in 
his community by volunteering over 10,000 hours of his time.  Councilman Wilson thanked Mr. Eldredge for his leadership 
and selfless commitment as a volunteer leader, which is truly appreciated.   
 

• ARPA Grant  
     Drinking Water 
     Wastewater 
     Lead Services  
Mr. Doyle presented the committee with proposals from Benton & Associates to provide Professional Engineering, Surveying and 
Technical Services regarding the Drinking Water  - Cost $10,000 and Wastewater – Cost $14,000  engineering report amendments 
which is a requirement of the ARPA Grants to be selected.  Councilman Rice made the motion to move these to City Council for 
approval. Councilman Wilson seconded and all were in favor.  
 

• Solid Waste Collection 
     Termination of Service Letter – Zeigenbein Sanitation- Mr. Doyle presented a copy of a “Termination of Zeigenbein Sanitation 
Service “letter that has been mailed out to Zeigenbein’s customers providing official notice that Zeigenbein Sanitation will be 
terminating their long-standing sanitation service on August 31, 2022.   
 
     City Letter – Mr. Doyle presented a copy of the letter from the City of Waynesville that is informing businesses of Zeigenbein 
Sanitation’s existing services that will stop on August 31, 2022 and that the City of Waynesville will resume the recycling and 
sanitation responsibilities beginning on September 1, 2022.  Also collectively, the City and Zeigenbein have worked very hard to 
ensure every City customer will be serviced throughout this transition.   
 
     Review Deposit –Trash Service – Mr. Doyle has requested a review of deposit rates for trash services and determined the 
current deposits are inadequate and result in greater loss from unpaid utility bills.  These changes are necessary to allow the City 
to continue to provide trash services.  Councilman Wilson made the motion to move to City Council for approval to revise the 
existing Ordinance 2167 for trash utility deposits to $25 for residential (both owner & renter).  The trash utility deposit should be 
equal to one month’s bill for commercial (both small and large).  Councilman Rice seconded and all were in favor.   
 
     Residential Trash Bins – Mr. Doyle has been researching trash carts that would be available to our customers and presented 
information to the committee to look over and review.    

 

• City Engineering Services – RFQ 
     Benton & Associates 

 Mr. Doyle stated that the City of Waynesville has sent out a letter requesting qualifications for engineering services. The 
 Procurement process is complete with only one engineering company providing an RFQ/RFP by Benton and Associates.   
 

•  Other Business 
     Fire Hydrant Repair – Scheduled for July 6th – Mr. Doyle stated the fire hydrant repair is scheduled for valve install on July 
6th at 9:00 am. 
 
 

 



• Department Updates 
Water/Wastewater – Mr. Donne Beal stated that the department has installed main lines and taps on La Vista and 

Mesa, repaired a 4” water main on Stuart, need to finish work on Bollinger Hill and ongoing work in new Development 
areas.   

Natural Gas – Mr. Joe York stated that his department has been on working on Alice Dr installed services to 
homes.  Gas employees attended a MANGO conference at the lake that also included safety classes.   

 
Electric – Mr. Daniel Shelden stated that his department had 9 trees, 5 misc, 5 new services, 1 upgrade and 5 

power outages for the Month of June.  TOTH has started GIS of our electrical system that will take around 4 months to 
complete.  The electric department has received a Certificate of Excellence in Reliability – Award provided to the City of 
Waynesville’s electric department by MPUA. One of five electric utilities recognized statewide for this award. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned by Chairman Conley at 4:25pm.  
 
Next meeting is scheduled for August 2nd, 2022 at 3:30 pm 



Bill No.  2022-19 City of Waynesville Ordinance No.  

 
Bill No. 2022-19         Ordinance No.  
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR  
THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE BY BENTON & ASSOCIATES, INC;  

FIXING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to apply for funding through ARPA, the American Rescue Plan Act, for upgrades 
to its water and wastewater systems; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to apply, amendments to the reports prepared by Cochran Engineering and Archer 
Elgin Engineering, respectively, regarding the water and wastewater systems of the City, must be 
amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton and Associates, Inc, submitted a proposal to provide the necessary amendments to the 
water and wastewater reports; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby wishes to accept Benton & Associates Proposal for engineering 
services.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, MISSOURI AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1.   A proposal for Engineering Services for the City of Waynesville, Missouri, submitted by Benton 
and Associates, Inc., attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. 
  
Section 2.  The Mayor and/or City Administrator is authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the 
City.  The City Administrator is also authorized to execute this Agreement and other documents necessary 
in the absence or unavailability of the Mayor.  
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 21st DAY OF JULY, 2022. 
  
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Michele Brown, City Clerk 













Bill No.  2022-22 City of Waynesville Ordinance No.  

Bill No.  2022-22                    Ordinance No.  
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING REQUIREMENTS FOR UTILITY DEPOSITS AND AMENDING 
REFUND OF UTILITY DEPOSITS; RESTORATION OF SERVICE; PAYMENT  
ARRANGEMENTS; SAME DAY SERVICE; LETTER OF CREDIT/HISTORY; 

FIXING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Utility Committee has requested a review of deposit rates and determined the City was 
losing revenues with the lower utility deposits and has determined that the current deposits are 
inadequate and result in greater loss from unpaid utility bills; 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has determined that the adjustments hereinafter set forth are necessary to 
allow the City to continue to provide such utility services. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
SECTION 1.  Before natural gas, electric, water, sanitary sewer services, and trash services are furnished 
by the City to any residential or commercial customers; the customer shall pay to the City a deposit in an 
amount which is determined from the following schedule: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SECTION 2.  Utility Deposits paid by customers shall be held by the City of Waynesville in an escrow 
account until such time as the customer terminates the account or becomes delinquent and is 
disconnected.  Deposit will be applied to the account and customer shall pay entire balance in full and to 
restore service must make a new deposit.  If any account in good standing that terminates service with 
the City and has a balance at that time said balance will be refunded to customer. 
 
SECTION 3.  Payment and Deposit Arrangements:  City Administrator and or Designated 
Representative(s) have the authority to make special payment or arrangements for unforeseen or 
special circumstances.   

  
                           

RESIDENTIAL   RESIDENTIAL SMALL LARGE 

       OWNER   RENTER COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL 

ELECTRIC $250.00 $300.00 $300.00 $500.00 

          

NATURAL GAS $125.00 $150.00 $200.00 $300.00 

          

WATER $25.00 $50.00 $100.00 $100.00 

          

SEWER $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00 

          

TRASH $25.00 $25.00     EQUAL TO MONTHLY TRASH SERVICE RATE 

 
     

    



Bill No.  2022-22 City of Waynesville Ordinance No.  

 
 
 
SECTION 4.   Immediate (Same Day) Connection/Disconnection Service:  A $15 service fee will be 
required for immediate/same day connection or disconnection of utilities. 
 
SECTION 5.  Letter of Credit/Payment History:  Based on an evaluation of utility payment history and or 
a current letter of credit, the utility deposit may be reduced as follows: 
   
 Renter deposit can be reduced to the homeowner deposit amount. 

a. Owner deposit can be reduced by $50.00 
b. Commercial deposit can be reduced by $200.00 

 
 
SECTION 6.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed, to include: 
615.040 (A), 615.050, 615.060. 
 
SECTION 7.  This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after its passage and approval.   
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 21ST DAY OF JULY, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Michele Brown, City Clerk 
 



 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT and GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS  
COMMITTEE MEETING SUMMARY 

July 5, 2022 
In Attendance:    
Committee: Chairman Rob Rice, Councilman Bill Farnham 
City Staff: John Doyle, Miriam Jones, Doug Potts, Tracey York 
Guests: Randy Brown, Sean Wilson, Mack Wilkerson 
Media: Darrell Maurina 
 
1. Call to Order and Citizen Comments– Chairman Rice called the meeting to order at 5:00pm. No 

citizen comments.  
2. Approval of minutes- Councilman Farnham made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from 

June 7, 2022. Chairman Rice seconded the motion. Motion passed.   
3. Business Spotlight 

a. July- R Veterinary at Cross Creek is the Business Spotlight for July.  
b. Discuss allowing home-based businesses to apply- Doug Potts received two applications 

for the Business Spotlight that were home-based businesses. He would like feedback from 
the committee on allowing home-based businesses to be recognized for the Business 
Spotlight. Mr. Potts will put together a certain series of requirements to meet to be eligible 
for home-based businesses to be selected for the business spotlight.  

4. Trash distribution letter circulation- Mr. Doyle discussed the upcoming sanitation change in 
commercial trash within the city limits. Received a lot of calls from commercial business owners on 
the letter that was sent out from Zeigenbein Sanitation. Mr. Doyle put together a response letter in 
regards to the change in trash services and is being hand delivered to the commercial businesses 
reassuring them that the city has been preparing for this and their trash will be collected by city 
starting in September.  

5. New promotional items (tumblers)- Doug Potts discussed the new promotional item. Picture of 
tumbler was provided in the packet.   

6. Radio advertising for Hogs and Frogs and other events- Doug Potts is looking into putting out 
radio ads on KFLW and KJPW for Hogs and Frogs and other special events.  

7. DCIP Fire Station Project Proposal- John Doyle discussed the grant proposal being submitted by 
the city for a fire station. DCIP stands for Defense Community Infrastructure Pilot Program. There are 
certain requirements from grant that include being a project that enhances the military value and 
resilience of Fort Leonard Wood and improves quality of life for the growing number of military-
connected families in the community. Fort Leonard Wood supports this project. 

8. City Engineering Services- RFQ 
i. Benton & Associates- Benton & Associates has been selected to perform certain 

engineering projects. They have been involved in other projects with the city and are very 
familiar with Waynesville. Benton & Associates are the only ones that submitted a RFQ.  

9. Special Events-    
i. Five Dirty Bikers Motorcycle Podcast in Roubidoux Park- July 16, 2022 
ii. Movies in the Park- July 22 and August 5 

iii. Old Settlers Day- July 30-31 
iv. Route 66 Hogs and Frogs- September 23-25 
v. Leapfrog 5K/Frog Hill Half Marathon- September 30- 12:00pm to 6:00pm 

vi. Tadpole 10k- October 1 

10. Other Business- Councilman Farnham asked if there had been any feedback on the speed bumps at 
the park. John Doyle stated that he hasn’t heard anything other than a request for one more set. They 
seem to be working. Councilman Farnham discussed the recent vandalism and understands that it 
can be difficult to find the person who did it. Councilman Farnham would like to entertain an idea 
moving forward of some sort of reward policy if people come forward and report the people doing the 
vandalism. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:34pm. Next scheduled meeting will be held 
on August 2, 2022 at 5:00pm  



EMERGENCY SERVICE AND POLICE   
COMMITTEE MEETING SUMMARY 

July 14, 2022 
In Attendance:    
Members: Chairman Sean Wilson, Councilman Clarence Liberty, Councilman Ed Conley (sit in) 
City Staff: John Doyle, Miriam Jones, Doug Potts, Chief Dan Cordova 
Guests: Randy Brown, Mayor Jerry Brown, Shauna McCullough 
Media: Darrell Maurina 
 
1. Call to Order and Citizen Comments: Chairman Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:30pm.  
2. Approval of minutes- May 12, 2022- Councilman Liberty made a motion to approve the May 12, 

2022 meeting minutes. Chairman Wilson seconded the motion. Motion passed. 
3. Critical Response Team Meeting- Chief Cordova stated that the Critical Response Team meets once 

a month. This team is made up of the people who show up to an incident after the police. The team 
would like to invite committee members to attend the next meeting. Meetings are the first 
Tuesday of every month at 10am and held at the Sheriff’s Department.  

4. Grant Payment Policy Update- John Doyle stated that Chief Cordova brought to his attention 
potential grants that pay more than what our policy specifies. Some of these grants pay double 
overtime. Mr. Doyle stated that the grant policy needs to be updated to state paid overtime is 
limited to the amount of grant funding only and any work performed on the grant, over and above 
what is specified in the grant agreement, will not be subsidized by the City. The policy also states 
that any employee, to include any salaried employee, who works overtime due to a Federal or 
State Grant Agreement, may be compensated according to the rate specified in the grant 
agreement. Councilman Liberty made a motion to send the updated grant policy to City Council for 
approval. Councilman Conley seconded the motion. Motion passes.  

5. Animal Shelter 
i. Fee for placement of dogs picked up in county- Mr. Doyle stated that the Animal 

Shelter is currently structured to take in dogs found in city limits only of Waynesville 
and Saint Robert. The Animal Shelter has been full for quite some time and seeing 
70-80% population are county dogs. People will drop off dogs and say they found 
dog at park located in city limits and then Animal Shelter employees will do research 
and find Facebook posts about these dogs and turns out that some of these dogs 
were originally found elsewhere outside of city limits. Owner surrenders are $75 so 
people will say they found the dog in city limits so they don’t get charged. It is 
difficult to manage when based on merit of person bringing dog in and not all dogs 
are chipped that come in however all are chipped and vetted before going back out. 
Mr. Doyle stated that parvo has been a big issue this year. Chairman Wilson asked if 
there was a way to request for funding from surrounding areas and how do we 
partner with the county. Mr. Doyle stated our facility is too small to partner with 
county. Councilman Conley suggested if not a resident, then don’t take dog. 
Chairman Wilson stated that the county needs to take responsibility. Need to come 
up with some sort of plan. Shauna McCullough suggested if Animal Shelter could get 
funds from county, then could use those funds to expand to be able to facilitate 
county dogs. Mr. Doyle stated he wants the committee to be aware of the issues 
and think of probable solutions moving forward.  

6. DCIP Fire Station Project Proposal- Mr. Doyle discussed the fire station project. The draft proposal 
was provided to the committee. This grant program is the Defense Community Infrastructure Pilot 
Program. Same grant program that did the Parker Fine Arts building. Every year available to 
Defense Communities. Waynesville was chosen this year to submit application as the fire station 
best fits guidelines provided this year. DCIP request $2,930,000 and match requirement $340,000.  



7. Police Department Updates- Chief Cordova stated that Officer Moore will be receiving an award at 
the LETSAC Conference. Officer Moore was nominated for Officer of the Year. Chief Cordova 
discussed a memorandum agreement between Fort Leonard Wood and Waynesville Police 
Department regarding interagency exchange of information for investigation and prosecution of 
offenses involving active-duty personnel assigned to FLW. This agreement is not an active contract 
and Chief has brought this to committee before and was advised to not sign agreement. The 
contract requires that the Waynesville Police give FLW all MULES reports involving Actie Duty 
Personnel assigned to FLW. Chief has been advised to not sign this agreement per our prosecutor. 
FLW can request information from prosecutor and if appropriate the prosecutor will give them the 
information that is needed so there is no reason to be in a contract regarding this.   

8. Special Events- 
i. Five Dirty Bikers Motorcycle Podcast in Roubidoux Park- July 16, 2022 
ii. Movies in the Park- July 22 and August 5 
iii. Old Settlers Day- July 30-31 
iv. Route 66 Hogs and Frogs- September 23-25 
v. Leapfrog 5K/Frog Hill Half Marathon- September 30- 12:00pm to 6:00pm 
vi. Tadpole 10k- October 1 

 

There was a need for a closed session. Councilman Liberty made a motion to enter into closed session. 
Councilman Conley seconded the motion. Committee entered closed session at 4:14pm.   
 
Councilman Liberty made a motion to return to open session. Councilman Conley seconded that motion. 
Committee returned to open session at 4:42pm. 
 
Having no further business, meeting adjourned at 4:42pm.  

 
Next meeting is scheduled for August 4, 2022 at 3:30pm.  



ROADS & GROUNDS COMMITTEE MEETING SUMMARY 
July 7, 2022 5:00pm 

 
In Attendance:  

 Members: Chairman Bill Farnham, Councilman Cecil Davis, Councilman Amanda Koren 
 City Staff: John Doyle, Miriam Jones, Jason Chapman, Doug Potts 
   Guests: Randy Brown, Keith Pritchard, Emily Bleke  

Media: Darrell Maurina 
1. Call to Order & Citizen Comments – Chairman Farnham called the meeting to order at 5:00pm. 

Citizen Emily Bleke, resides on Fritts Circle, asked if anything could be done in regards to parking on 
side of road on hill on Fritts Circle. She stated that people park on side of road in the middle of night 
and it is very dangerous when coming down the hill, you can’t see the cars and this is a safety issue. 
Driveways are always empty. Councilman Davis stated we can’t force anyone to park in driveway but 
could restrict parking to one side only. John Doyle stated we will take a look at Fritts Circle, get 
pictures and an idea of what it looks like to inform committee and come up with a solution. Randy 
Brown citizen that resides on Bluff Circle wanted to follow up on issue he brought forward at the last 
Roads and Grounds Committee meeting in regards to the two houses on Benton Street. Coming out 
of Bluff Cir impossible to see left or right due to all the vines on fences, wasn’t sure if abatement 
would cover this. John Doyle stated abatements are being addressed.  

2. Approval of Minutes- Councilman Davis made a motion to approve the minutes from June 2, 2022. 
Councilman Koren seconded the motion. Motion passed.  

3. Fitness Court Concrete Pour- The fitness court base has been laid and concrete will be poured next 
week.  

4. Speed Bumps at Roubidoux Park- Mr. Doyle discussed the speed bumps that are located at the 
Roubidoux Park. There are four sets placed throughout the park and have greatly reduced speed of 
traffic. There is a need for two more sets.  

5. Missouri Regional Bridge Program Application- Glenda Drive Bridge qualifies for the Missouri 
Bridge Grant Application. MoDOT encouraged municipalities to work with commissioners. Bridges 
listed are county bridges, not built for high traffic volume. Mr. Doyle would like to make this a new 
connecting route by modifying location.   

6. Frances Street- No Parking on Street Request- Mr. Doyle received phone call from citizen having 
issues with people parking in front of their home and requested there be a no parking sign allowed in 
front of their residence. There are already signs in this area. Mr. Doyle provided meeting minutes 
from a past Roads and Grounds meeting where it was voted on that no parking signs would be 
placed on both sides of the street within 100 feet from intersection of Frances and Prospect. 

7. Project Updates 
i. Alpine Road- Pictures provided to the committee of Alpine Road completion. 

8. Street Department Updates- Jason Chapman stated that the Street Department has been busy 
working on fitness court, Alpine is complete, running street sweeper two to three days a week, gates 
up at the Streatery, and repainted parking spots at the park.  

9. Other Business- Mr. Doyle stated that there have been messages on city facebook page from citizen 
about Sail Road. Concerned about road condition. Rock in ditch which floods road anytime it rains. 
City did not put rock in ditch however will try to improve situation by removing rock. Road is not on 
list for resurfacing until 2024. Councilman Davis stated he is still receiving Swedebourg Road 
complaints. He has tried to explain that its not that easy and going to have to wait until new 
subdivision is built otherwise wasting time and will just have to repair again. Mr. Doyle stated that 
there is a need for utility easements in order to start work on Swedebourg. Need to get drainage 
and take across ditch in order to reroute water so that it won’t continue to deteriorate the road.  

 
Having no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:42pm. 
 
The next scheduled meeting will be held on August 4, 2022 at 4:15pm.  



Finance & Human Resources Committee 
Open Session Summary of Minutes 

June 9th, 2022 
 
Members Present: Chairman Cecil Davis, Councilman Ed Conley, Councilman Amanda Koren 

Staff Present: John Doyle, Amber Box, Doug Potts 
Media: Darrell Marina, Pulaski County Daily News; Andrew Sheeley, Phelps County Focus 
Guests: Mayor Jerry Brown, Keith Pritchard, Irmengard Brinkley 

 
Call to Order: Meeting was called to order 5:00 p.m. Quorum was established.  

Citizen Comments:  

Irmengard Brinkley from 505 Pine Street Waynesville, MO – inquired about whether the officials 
on the City Council lived in Pulaski County. Chairman Davis stated that each live within Pulaski 
County, and within their perspective wards within the city limits of Waynesville. Ms. Brinkley 
then inquired about the censure of the mayor. Councilman Davis went through the events that 
lead up to the censure of the mayor. The mayor interjected several times while Davis was 
speaking. Davis reminded the mayor that the committee was asked the question and the Chair 
was responsible for answering the question. Davis provided Ms. Brinkley with several websites 
to visit including the City of Waynesville websites where she could find the meeting minutes, 
both the media sites that were present to include Pulaski County Daily News and Pulaski 
County Weekly where she can read their rendition as well as the independent investigators 
report, and also notified the citizen that videos of the meetings could be found on the 
Waynesville Tiger TV YouTube channel. Chairman Davis and Councilman Koren explained the 
next steps regarding the impeachment process. Ms. Brinkley had no further questions.  

Approval of Minutes: A motion was made by Councilman Conley to accept the June 9th, 2022 
minutes as written. Motion was seconded by Councilman Koren. A vote was called.  

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 
 

Review Bills: Committee reviewed the bills. Motion was made by Councilman Conley to approve 
paying the bills. Motion was seconded by Councilman Koren. A vote was called.  

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 
 

Cash Flow – Account Status/EOY Budget Review 

Committee reviewed the city’s cash flow reports, bank account status, and year to date budget. 
The city has completed 50% of the 2022 Fiscal Year with expenses ending at 57% and 
revenues at 54%.  City bank accounts have a total of $5,718,642.86 in restricted funds, reserve 
funds, and usable monies.  

Community Improvement District – Committee reviewed the CID Sales Tax Collection Summary 
Report.  



Mid-Year Adjustments – Committee reviewed the proposed budget adjustments. Councilman 
Koren made a motion to forward the proposed budget adjustments to City Council for final 
approval. Motion was seconded by Councilman Conley. A vote was called.  

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 

 
Grant Match Obligations – Committee reviewed the following grants and the required match 
obligations. Mr. Doyle stated that these applications will not lock the city down to paying these 
matches, so if we are fortunate enough to receive them all the city has the ability to choose 
which match obligations it can absorb.  
 
Councilman Koren made a motion to prepare a resolution to allow the city to apply for the DCIP 
(Defense Community Infrastructure Pilot Program) Fire Station (Total Project Costs 
$3,270,000. (10% match- $340,000) Total grant funding requested $2,930,000) and send it to 
City Council for final approval. Motion was seconded by Councilman Conley. A vote was called. 
  

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 

 

TAP (Transportation Alternatives Program) – No resolution Needed 

Total Project Costs $631,067.50. (21% match $132,524.17) Total grant funding requested 

$498,543.33 

2022 Non-Playground Scrap Tire Surface Material Grant – No Resolution Needed 
2-ADA Accessible 8-ft picnic tables, 6- traditional 8-ft picnic tables, 8- 8ft park benches.  
Total Costs- $14,344 (100% reimbursable) 
 
Missouri Regional Bridge Program Grant- No Resolution Needed 

Glenda St Bridge- Total Request- $289,000 

 

The committee also reviewed the following proposed project grant applications where DNR 

ARPA Funding was available to apply for:  

Councilman Koren made a motion to prepare a resolution to allow the city to apply for the 
Drinking Water Infrastructure Grant (Total Project Costs- $4,233,318.16. (11% match 
$465,665) ARPA Funding Request $3,767,653.16) and send it to City Council for final approval. 
Motion was seconded by Councilman Conley. A vote was called.  

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 

 
Councilman Koren made a motion to prepare a resolution to allow the city to apply for the 
Wastewater Infrastructure (Total Project Costs- $3,916,015. (11% match $430,761.65)  
ARPA Funding Request $3,485,253.35) and send it to City Council for final approval. Motion 
was seconded by Councilman Conley. A vote was called.  
 

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 



 
Councilman Koren made a motion to prepare a resolution to allow the city to apply for the  
Lead Service-Line Inventories (Total Project Cost - $150,000 (2% match $3,000) ARPA 
Funding Request $147,000) and send it to City Council for final approval. Motion was seconded 
by Councilman Conley. A vote was called.  
 

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed 

 
Team Eldredge Fundraisers – Mr. Doyle stated that all the fundraisers are being organized by 
volunteers, many of which are employees. Employees who are involved are doing this on their 
personal time. The Richland community along with Jack’s daughter, organized a Jack Madness 
Basketball Tournament that was well attended, and many city employees volunteered during the 
event. Currently the Jack of Hearts event is happening each week and the Team Eldredge 
Online Basket Auction will go live on July 15th.   

Other Business: 

Censure of Mayor Update – Chairman Davis stated that to date, the mayor has not provided the 
committee with an action plan as required. Articles of Impeachment are being drafted and once 
completed, can be viewed by the public. To view, the public needs to come in person to City 
Hall and review in the City Clerks office, as they documents cannot leave City Hall. Councilman 
Koren stated that a special meeting will be called and will be announced to the public. Chairman 
Davis asked Mayor Brown if he had anything to present to the committee. Mayor Brown stated 
that he did not.  
 
Mr. Doyle stated a need for closed session in accordance with RSMo 610.21 (1)(2)(3)(13). 
Councilman Conley moved to go into closed session for that purpose and was seconded by 
Councilman Koren. A vote was called.  
 

YEAS – Conley, Davis, Koren 
NAYS – None 
Motion Passed & committee enter into closed session at 5:45 p.m. 

 

Committee returned to open session at 6:20 p.m. 
 
Committee adjourned a 6:21 p.m. 

Next meeting will be held on August 11th, 2022 at 5:00pm 



Bill No.  2022-24 City of Waynesville Ordinance No.  

 

Bill No.  2022-24                                                              Ordinance No.  

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 BUDGET;  
REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES;  

FIXING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, MISSOURI AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  That the City of Waynesville is required to authorize expenditures for all municipal purposes 
and for proprietary and special funds under its care, and that said Fiscal Year 2022 Budget is herein 
referenced thereto. 
 
Section 2.  That the City Administrator has submitted a budget in accordance with Ordinance #2502, a 
copy of which is on file with the City Clerk. 
 
Section 3.  That the City Council has reviewed the budgeted document, attached as “Exhibit A”, and the 

amended 2022 fiscal year budget is hereby accepted and approved. 

Section 4.  That this ordinance shall take full force and effect upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 21st DAY OF JULY, 2022. 
 

 

      

      _______________________________ 

      Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Michele Brown, City Clerk 

 

                                                                                 

 

 

 









 City of Waynesville Resolution No. 11-22 

 RESOLUTION NO. 11-22 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OR CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO SECURE  
FUNDING THROUGH THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FOR PROJECTS LOCATED  

WITHIN THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE; 
FIXING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) provides opportunities to upgrade utility infrastructure and 
enhance utility and emergency services through grant funding opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to apply for these funds, the City would be obligated to provide match funding for each project 
application; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does have areas of need which may be addressed by ARPA grant funding opportunities. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, THAT 
 
Applications to the American Rescue Plan Act have been prepared.  
  
THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, THAT 
 

Section 1.    The following percentage match amounts per each project, are hereby approved: 
 

1. DCIP (Defense Community Infrastructure Pilot Program) Fire Station.   
Total Project Costs $3,270,000 
10% Match - $340,000 

 
2. Drinking Water Infrastructure. 

Total Project Costs $3,767,653.16 
11% Match - $465,665 

 
3. Wastewater Infrastructure. 

Total Project Costs  $3,485,253.35 
11% Match - $430,761.62 

 
4. Lead Service Line Inventories. 

Project Funding: $150,000 
2% Match - $3,000 

 
Section 2.    The Mayor and/or City Administrator of the city of Waynesville, Missouri is authorized to sign and 
execute the necessary documents for all project applications.   
 
Section 3.    These persons are also hereby authorized to sign the project agreements, subsequent amendments 
and other necessary documents to complete the projects.  
 

PASSED AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE THIS 21st DAY OF JULY, 
2022. 
 
 
       By: __________________________________ 
              Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Michele Brown, City Clerk 





WAYNESVILLE-ST ROBERT JOINT AIRPORT 
BOARD MEETING 

SUMMARY 
June 28, 2022 

3:00pm  
Attendance:  
Board: Chairman Lauritson, John Doyle, Anita Ivey, Clarence Liberty, Bill Taylor 
Staff: Miriam Jones, Mike Guy, Doug Potts 
Guests: Sean Wilson, Amanda Koren, Kenny Howard, Ralph Parker, Erin Younkin, Ryan Lorton, Bob Crain, 
Dave Robinson, Randy Becht, Keith Pritchard, Dorsey Newcomb, Walter Reese, Doug Spitalny, Kevin 
Downey, Martha Miller, Mark Parker 
Media: Darrell Maurina 
  
1. Call to Order: John Doyle called the meeting to order at 3:00pm  
2. Approval of Minutes:  Clarence Liberty made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from May 24, 

2022. Motion was seconded by Anita Ivey. The motion passed.  
3. Comments by Guests- Keith Pritchard stated that the airport is among the top three in the final 

selection of location for the 2023 Annual conference Navy Seabee team event to be held in June. 
There are 123 civilian aids that participate in this event and will land F/A-18’s at the airport. Mr. 
Pritchard will update the board if Waynesville Saint Robert Airport is selected. 

4. Reports by Staff 
a. Administration:  

i. Budget- The budget was provided to the Board which reflects 50% of the year. 
Revenue is tracking at 45% and expenses tracking at 49%. Randy Becht made a 
motion to approve the budget. Clarence Liberty seconded the motion. Motion 
approved.    

ii. Airport Operations Manager- Mike Guy stated that fuel sales are up. The 
automatic fuel shut off system has been installed. Employees have been busy 
cutting grass and conducting normal daily operations.  

5. New Business: 
i. SkyWest Airline Update  

a.  Application from SkyWest Charter for a Commuter Air Carrier Authorization- No 
one from SkyWest attended the meeting. No update provided. 

ii. Essential Air Service Selection Update- Mr. Doyle stated that the EAS selection has been 
made. Contour was selected and will provide service from TBN to Nashville. At this time a 
start date is unknown.  

iii. Burns & McDonnell Engineering Update 
a.  NEPA Re-Evaluation Grant- Ryan Lorton stated that he has reached out to 

MoDOT and the grant has been delayed. The original start date was July 5. That 
will change now since it is taking longer than MoDOT anticipated to get moving 
forward.  

b.  Environmental Baseline Survey (draft)- Ryan Lorton stated that we found out 
that an Environmental Baseline Survey will be needed for the Terminal Area 
Master Plan project. This information was provided at the last follow up meeting. 
FAA will review and update accordingly. The intent will be to amend the NEPA 
grant in order for things to continue moving forward. 

c.  Terminal Area Master Plan- Next Follow up meeting- July 12, 2022 at 2:00pm- 
Waynesville City Hall 

iv. SOP Marketing Report- Erin Younkin provided the marketing report update. Overall 
impressions dropped, but the click through rate went up, meaning ads were seen by more 



people who found them relevant. We’d like to see more website traffic and more clicks on 
our ads. We’ll be writing a new blog post next month and we have updated the Google ad for 
July. The optimization score rose to 68.9%. Google recommends updating our headlines and 
updating our ad. That work has been done for the next month of ads. Keywords have also 
been adjusted in hopes of improving the optimization score for next month.  

 
With no further business, John Doyle adjourned the meeting at 3:27pm. Next meeting: Tuesday, July 26, 
2022 at 3pm at Waynesville City Hall. 
 



Bill No.  2022-21 City of Waynesville Ordinance No.  

Bill No. 2022-21 
    Ordinance No.  

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AN AIRPORT AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  
CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, THE CITY OF SAINT ROBERT AND THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION TO INCLUDE AN ENVIRONMENTAL BASELINE STUDY TO 

A NEPA RE-EVALUATION; 
FIXING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
WHEREAS, on May 26th, 2022, the City Council approved an Agreement for a NEPA Evaulation for 
Project No. AIR 216-057B-1; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend that Agreement to include an Environmental Baseline Study to 
support the NEPA Re-evaluation. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF WAYNESVILLE, MO AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1.  The Missouri Highways and Transportation commission Airport Aid Agreement for NEPA 

re-evaluation’s project number is hereby amended from
 
AIR 216-057B-1 to AIR 226-057B-1 to 

signify the addition of the Environmental Baseline Study. 
 
Section 2.  The Addendum to the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission Airport Aid 
Agreement for NEPA re-evaluation, Project No. 226-057B-1 is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference.   
 
Section 2.  The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission Airport Aid Agreement Addendum to the NEPA re-evaluation. 
 
Section 3.  The Mayor and/or City Administrator is authorized to execute this grant Agreement on 
behalf of the City, legally binding the City and expend City funds.  The City Clerk is directed to affix 
thereto the official seal of the City and to attest to the same. 
 
Section 4.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF WAYNESVILLE ON THIS 

21
st  DAY OF JULY, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Michele Brown, City Clerk 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR 

ADDENDUM TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION OF PROPERTY and 
ENVIRONMENTAL BASELINE STUDY TO SUPPORT 

THE NEPA RE-EVALUATION 
TERMINAL FACILITY DEVELOPMENT WAYNESVILLE-ST. ROBERT REGIONAL 

AIRPORT 
 
 
A. PROJECT NAME AND DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS: 

1. Project Name:  Waynesville-St. Robert Regional Airport (TBN) 
 

2. Description of Improvements: Provide project administration and 
environmental services for an addendum to the Environmental Condition of 
Property (ECP) and Environmental Baseline Study (EBS) in support of the NEPA 
Re-Evaluation for the Construction of New Passenger Terminal.  

 
B. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED:   

CONSULTANT has developed the following Scope of Services to perform the 

aforementioned project, which are defined as follows: 

 
1. ECP/EBS Update: Environmental protection and management for the Army is 

governed by Army Regulation (AR) 200-1 (December 2007). Per Section 15-5, 
CERCLA requires the Army to perform actions to assess the environmental 
condition of a property prior to any real property transactions. An ECP Report, 
will assess, determine, and document the environmental condition of the 
transferable property and summarize historical, cultural, and environmental 
conditions. Per AR 200-1, the ECP must comply with American Society for 
Testing and Materials (ASTM) standards including E1527, E1903, and D6008.  
 
The Army must sufficiently document the environmental condition of property 
being transferred; therefore, an EBS is required. Per ASTM D6008-96, in 
accordance with the Department of Defense (DoD) policy, an EBS is to be 
prepared or evaluated for its usefulness (and updated if necessary) for any 
property to be transferred by deed or leased. The EBS will be based on existing 
environmental information related to storage, release, treatment, or disposal of 
hazardous substances or petroleum products on the property to determine or 
discover the obviousness of the presence or likely presence of a release or 
threatened release of any hazardous substance or petroleum product.   

 
BMcD will prepare an update to the prior ECP/EBS to support the NEPA Re-
Evaluation for approval of the proposed change in scope for the development of 
a new passenger terminal at TBN. The update will address the new lease area, 
prior lease area, and taxiway. The document will follow the format and content of 



 

 

the prior Environmental Condition of Property Evaluation, Forney Army Airfield 
Environmental Baseline Report for the new terminal lease area prepared in 
October 2016. The following tasks will be conducted: 

 
a) Coordination and Interviews 
 
Burns & McDonnell has included limited time to coordinate between the team 
members and the cities, FAA, MoDOT Aviation, and FLW-DPW to complete 
project requirements. Our team will conduct interviews of relevant personnel and 
provide a questionnaire to obtain information regarding current and past site uses 
to support preparation of the ECP/EBS.  

Assumptions: 
1. FLW-DPW will provide facility and occupant contact information upon 

notice-to-proceed such that the Burns & McDonnell can interview 
appropriate FLW-DPW staff and occupant in order to identify areas of 
environmental interest prior to the site visit.  

 
b) Site Visit 
 
Burns & McDonnell will conduct a site visit to visually assess the Project area in 
support of the ECP/EBS. 
 

Assumptions: 
1. The site visit, local records searches, and interviews with local 

individuals can be completed by one person over three (3) consecutive 
days. 

2. FLW-DPW will provide written and legal authorization for Burns & 
McDonnell to perform services on the Property, including obtaining 
right of access to the Property. No additional costs will be incurred by 
Burns & McDonnell in order to comply with any requirements of the 
right of access agreement. Note that an in-person site visit by Burns & 
McDonnell personnel is required in order to fully meet the requirements 
of ASTM E1527 and AAI. If, for any reason, such a site visit cannot be 
conducted, then the Phase I ESA report will be conditioned 
accordingly, including noting the exception as a deviation from the 
ASTM E1527 standard, and full liability protection may not be obtained 
by the Cities or FLW-DPW. 

3. Prior to visiting the Property for the purpose of site reconnaissance, 
Burns & McDonnell will identify areas of environmental interest through 
the use of aerial photographs and/or remote sensing imagery, the 
records review, and interviews. Burns & McDonnell will perform a site 
visit to visually and physically observe areas of environmental interest 
on the Property. If present, Burns & McDonnell will not access the 
interior of any structures on the Property without permission and/or 
escort from DPW.  Note that the interiors of all structures within the 
Project area is required in order to fully meet the requirements of 



 

 

ASTM E1527 and AAI. If, for any reason, such access to such 
structures is denied or is not possible during the site visit, then the 
report will be conditioned accordingly, including noting the exception as 
a deviation from the ASTM E1527 standard, and full liability protection 
may not be obtained by the Cities or FLW-DPW. 

4. No sampling or testing is included. 
 
c) ECP/EBS  

 
Burns & McDonnell will prepare an ECP/EBS consistent with the 
applicable regulations defined in AR 200-1 including ASTM Standards 
E1527 (Phase I Site Assessment), D6008 (Standard Practice for 
Conducting EBSs), and D5746 (ECP Categorization).  We assume that no 
testing will be conducted as part of this effort (e.g., E1903 - Phase II Site 
Assessment). The EBS will cover the entirety of the area to be leased, to 
include currently leased areas that will continue into the new lease, the 
new parallel taxiway, and all areas to be added to the lease for the 
development of the new terminal, parking lot, and associated 
infrastructure.  Per Army clarification, this Project will also include a 
discussion of potential issues from adjacent properties including the Mock 
Village IRP Site. The ECP will include classification in accordance with the 
ECP categories consistent with regulatory requirements. In addition to the 
activities discussed in the tasks above, Burns & McDonnell will also 
evaluate and summarize readily available documentation regarding 
perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOS/PFOA) data 
in the ECP/EBS for potential previous use of aqueous film forming foam 
(AFFF) on the airfield.  
 
Burns & McDonnell notes the following assumptions specific to this task:  

 
Assumptions: 
1. Preparation of Findings of Suitability is not required/included. 
2. PFOS/PFOA will be desktop level only and will not include any 

sampling efforts. 
3. FLW-DPW will provide the title and land judicial records for 

environmental liens and activity and use limitations (AULs). Note that 
full liability protection cannot be obtained under the ASTM E1527 
Standard and AAI Regulation (40 CFR 312) without a review of title 
and land judicial records for environmental liens and AULs. If these 
records are provided to Burns & McDonnell, they will be discussed and 
included in the Phase I ESA report. If the Cities or FLW-DPW would 
prefer that Burns & McDonnell obtain this information for inclusion in 
the report, an additional fee will be applied. An estimated cost can be 
provided upon request. 

4. FLW-DPW will provide a copy of the chain-of-title for the Property, if 
available. 



 

 

5. FLW-DPW will provide a copy of the Title Policy for the real estate 
transaction, if available. 

6. The Phase I ESA will not include any inquiry with respect to controlled 
substances, environmental compliance, radon, methane, asbestos, 
lead paint, mold, wetlands, emerging contaminants, or vapor intrusion.    

7. No party other than the Government (FLW and FAA) and cities is 
permitted by Burns & McDonnell to rely on the report without prior 
authorization by Burns & McDonnell.  

8. FLW-DPW shall place at Burns & McDonnell’s disposal all available 
information pertinent to the Scope of Services on this Project, including 
previous reports and any other data relative thereto. Information 
provided by FLW-DPW or others regarding current or previous site 
conditions, materials, contamination, or other relevant data will be 
accepted as accurate without independent verification. 

 
 
 

 
END SOW 



EXHIBIT IV SUMMARY

DERIVATION OF CONSULTANT PROJECT COSTS

SUMMARY OF COSTS

Waynesville-St. Robert Regional Airport

Lease Hold Revisions Evironmental Baseline Study (EBS)

Waynesville & St. Robert, MO

BASIC & SPECIAL SERVICES

June 28, 2022

1 DIRECT SALARY COSTS

TITLE HOURS RATE/HR COST ($)

Senior Environmental Specialist 72.00 66.00$       4,752.00$              -$                       -$                       

Environmental Specialist 100.00 50.00$       5,000.00$              -$                       -$                       

Staff Environmental Specialist 80.00 42.00$       3,360.00$              -$                       -$                       

Clerical 3.00 30.00$       90.00$                   -$                       -$                       

Total Hours 255.00

Total Direct Salary Costs 13,202.00$           -$                       -$                       

2 LABOR & GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD

a. Percentage of Direct Salary Cost: (Office Rate) 221.75% 29,275.44$           

b. Percentage of Direct Salary Cost: (Field Rate) 188.24% -$                       

c. Percentage of Direct Salary Cost: (Contract Employee Rate) 0.00% -$                       

d. FCCM Rate (Optional) 0.00% -$                       -$                       -$                       

3 SUBTOTAL

Summary of Items No. 1 and No. 2 (a,b,c): 42,477.44$           -$                       -$                       

4 PROFIT/FIXED FEE: 

Percentage: 10.00% 4,247.74$              -$                       -$                       

5 SUBTOTAL

Summary of Items No. 1, No. 2 & No. 4: (Lump Sum Fee) 46,725.18$          -$                      -$                      

6 OUT OF POCKET EXPENSES

OFFICE No. of Units Units Cost/Unit

Travel: Mileage 300.00 Miles 0.560$       168.00$                 

Food: Per Diem 3.00 Per Day 55.00$       165.00$                 

Lodging: Per Diem (incl. taxes) 2.00 Per Day 104.13$    208.26$                 

Rental Vehicle 0.00 Days 65.00$       -$                       

Airline 0.00 Hour 0.00$         -$                       

Printing, Shipping & Misc. 933.56$                 

Subtotal 1,474.82$             -$                      -$                      

Summary of Out of Pocket Expenses: (Not to Exceed) 1,474.82$             -$                      -$                      

7 SUBCONSULTANTS

Subtotal (Not to Exceed) -$                      -$                      -$                      

8 MAXIMUM TOTAL FEE

Subtotal 48,200.00$          -$                      -$                      

TOTAL (Lump Sum)  $                                                                                 48,200.00 

EXHIBIT IV SUMMARY



EXHIBIT V SUMMARY

DERIVATION OF CONSULTANT PROJECT COSTS

SUMMARY OF COSTS

Waynesville-St. Robert Regional Airport

Lease Hold Revisions Evironmental Baseline Study (EBS)

Waynesville & St. Robert, MO

BASIC & SPECIAL SERVICES

June 28, 2022

Gross Hourly Rates 258.37$             230.05$       169.88$       233.59$       176.96$       148.65$       106.18$       

BASIC SERVICES

Environmental 

Baseline Study 0.0 0.0 0.0 72.0 100.0 80.0 3.0

Sum: (1, 2, 3, 

4, & 5)

48,200.00$               -$                  -$             -$             16,818.52$  17,696.25$  11,891.88$  318.53$       1,474.82$       

PART A SUBTOTAL
48,200.00$       

SPECIAL SERVICES

PART B SUBTOTAL
-$                  

PART A & PART B TOTAL 48,200.00$       

(1) Mileage, Motel & Meals (3) Computer Services

(2) Equipment, Materials & Supplies (4) Vendor Services

EXHIBIT V SUMMARY

Other Costs

Total =

1

Senior 

Environmental 

Specialist

Environmental 

Specialist

Staff 

Environmental 

Specialist

ClericalPrincipal
Project 

Manager

Sr. Aviation 

Planner



 City of Waynesville Resolution No. 12-22 

Resolution No. 12-22 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING DIRECTOR AND ALTERNATE DIRECTOR TO THE MUNICIPAL GAS 
COMMISSION DBA  

MISSOURI GAS COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Waynesville, Missouri is a member of the Municipal Gas Commission of 
Missouri doing business as Missouri Gas Commission and has executed the MGCM Joint 
Contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, the MGCM Joint Contract, Paragraph 7 (c) “Board of Directors, Appointment” 
provides that the governing board of the Contracting Municipalities shall appoint one Director 
and one Alternate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Waynesville, Missouri, wishes to appoint a Director and 
Alternate Director. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE, THAT 

  

John Doyle is hereby appointed Director and Daniel Shelden is appointed Alternate Director. 

 

PASSED AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAYNESVILLE THIS 21ST DAY OF 
JULY, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
       By: _____________________________ 
              Dr. Jerry Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Michele Brown, City Clerk 
 



 

 
Mayor Dr. Jerry Brown                                                                                                                                        Phone (573) 774-6171 
City Administrator John Doyle                                                                                                                                Fax (573) 774-5647  
City Clerk Michele Brown                                                                                                                               www.waynesvillemo.org  

  

 

July 19, 2022 

 

 

To: Waynesville City Council 

From: City Administrator John Doyle 

 

Re: City Administrator’s Report – July 2022  

 

Grant Funding Opportunity Updates 

DNR ARPA Grant Program 

• Wastewater Infrastructure ARPA Grant 
o Total Project Cost - $3,916,015 

o Local Match (11%) - $430,761.65 

o State ARPA Grant Funds Requested - $3,485,253.35 

• Drinking Water Infrastructure ARPA Grant 

o Total Project Cost - $4,233,318.16 

o Local Match (11%) - $465,665 

o State ARPA Grant Funds Requested - $3,767,653.16 

• Lead Service-Line Inventories ARPA Grant 

o Total Project Cost - $150,000 

o Local Match - $3,000 

o State ARPA Grant Funds Requested - $147,000 

        DCIP (Defense Community Infrastructure Pilot Program) – Grant Program 

o Total Project Cost - $3,270,000 

o Local Match - $340,000 

o DCIP Grant Funds Requested - $2,930,000 

         TAP (Transportation Alternatives Program) – Grant Program 

o Total Project Cost - $639,567.50 

o Local Match (22%) - $140,704.85 

o TAP Grant Funds Requested - $498,862.65 

          2022 Non-Playground Scrap Tire Surface Material Grant Program 

o Total Project Cost - $14,000 

100 Tremont Center 
Waynesville, MO.  65583 

http://www.waynesvillemo.org/


 

  

o Local Match – N/A 

o Non-Playground Scrap Tire Grant Funds Requested - $14,000 

Missouri Regional Bridge Grant Program 

o Total Project Cost - $869,000 

o Local Match (20%) - $173,800 

o Missouri Regional Bridge Grant Funds Requested - $695,000 

2022 Grant Summary 

o Total Grant Program(s) Project Cost - $13,092,244.66 

o Total Local Match - $1,553,931.50 

o Total Grant Funds Requested - $11,538,313.16 

Trash/Sanitation Services – City of Waynesville 

• City of Waynesville will be providing trash/sanitation/recycle services to the commercial 

properties/businesses beginning September 1, 2022. 

• If any of these users/accounts should have questions please contact City Hall at 

573.774.6171 

Upcoming Events 

• Cave State Cruisers – July 23rd – 24th  

• Movies in the Park – June 24th, July 22nd, August 5th  

• Old Settlers Day – July 30th – 31st  

• Hogs & Frogs Festival – September 23rd – 25th  

• Leapfrog 5K/Frog Hill Half Marathon – September 30th 

• Tadpole 10K – October 1st  


















































